
Scrutiny Standing  
Panel Agenda 

1 

 
 
 
 
Environmental and Planning Services Standing Scrutiny 
Panel 
Thursday, 28th February, 2008 
 
Place: Committee Room 1, Civic Offices, High Street, Epping 
  
Time: 7.30 pm 
  
Democratic Services 
Officer: 

Z Folley - Research and Democratic Services 
Tel: 01992 564532 Email: zfolley@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 

 
Members: 
 
Councillors Mrs P Smith (Chairman), D Bateman (Vice-Chairman), Mrs A Cooper, R Bassett, 
R Frankel, P House, J Knapman, G Pritchard, Mrs P Richardson, H Ulkun, Mrs L Wagland 
and M Woollard 
 
 

 1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 

 2. SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS (COUNCIL MINUTE 39 - 23.7.02)   
 

  (Assistant to the Chief Executive)  To report the appointment of any substitute 
members for the meeting. 
 

 3. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS   
 

  (Assistant to the Chief Executive). To declare interests in any items on the agenda. 
 
In considering whether to declare a personal or a prejudicial interest under the Code 
of Conduct, Overview & Scrutiny members are asked pay particular attention to 
paragraph 11 of the Code in addition to the more familiar requirements. 
 
This requires the declaration of a personal and prejudicial interest in any matter before 
an OS Committee which relates to a decision of or action by another Committee or 
Sub Committee of the Council, a Joint Committee or Joint Sub Committee in which the 
Council is involved and of which the Councillor is also a member. 
 
Paragraph 11 does not refer to Cabinet decisions or attendance at an OS meeting 
purely for the purpose of answering questions or providing information on such a 
matter. 
 

 4. NOTES OF THE LAST MEETING  (Pages 3 - 6) 
 

  Attached.  

 



Environmental and Planning Services Standing Scrutiny Panel Thursday, 28 February 2008 
 
 

2 

 
 5. VOSA PRESENTATION   

 
  To receive a presentation from the Vehicle Inspection Agency (VOSA).   

 
At a recent meeting, the Panel gave further consideration to their review of the 
Nazeing Focus Day. During this, they requested to hear from VOSA to gain their views 
on the issues and how they may be eased. Specifically it was suggested this cover:  
 

• the processes for issuing HGV Operators' licenses,  
• the remit and legal limits of VOSA’s authority  
• the limits of the grounds for valid objections.  

 
Consequently a representative of VOSA will be attending this meeting to consider 
these issues and wider issues regarding this review.  
 

 6. WORK PROGRAMME  (Pages 7 - 8) 
 

  Attached.  
 

 7. LOCAL BETTER REGULATION OFFICE - DRAFT STRATGEY 2008-2011  (Pages 9 
- 12) 

 
  Report Attached.  

 
 8. REPORTS TO BE MADE TO THE NEXT MEETING OF THE OVERVIEW AND 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE   
 

  To consider which reports are ready to be submitted to the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee at its next meeting. 
 

 9. FUTURE MEETINGS   
 

  23 April 2008 – 7.30 pm 
 

 



1

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL 
NOTES OF A MEETING OF ENVIRONMENTAL AND PLANNING SERVICES STANDING 

SCRUTINY PANEL  
HELD ON THURSDAY, 6 DECEMBER 2007 

IN COMMITTEE ROOM 1, CIVIC OFFICES, HIGH STREET, EPPING 
AT 7.30  - 9.55 PM 

Members
Present:

Mrs P Smith (Chairman), D Bateman (Vice-Chairman), R Bassett, 
R Frankel, G Pritchard, Mrs P Richardson, Mrs L Wagland and 
Mrs J H Whitehouse 

Other members 
present:

K Angold-Stephens 

Apologies for 
Absence:

Mrs A Cooper, P House and M Woollard 

Officers Present J Gilbert (Director of Environment and Street Scene), J Nolan 
(Environmental Health Manager) and Z Folley (Democratic Services 
Assistant)

41. SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS (COUNCIL MINUTE 39 - 23.7.02)  

It was noted that Councillor Mrs J H Whitehouse was substituting for Councillor M 
Woollard.

42. NOTES OF THE LAST MEETING - 29 OCTOBER 2007.  

Noted subject to section on Parking reviews (pg 5) being amended to read:  

It was noted that all Members had been invited to comment on the Epping Parking 
Review Consultation 2004. The particulars were included in the Cabinet papers.  

43. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  

None reported.

44. WORK PLAN  

The Panel considered the updated work plan. 

(Essex County Joint Waste Committee – (Item 1)).  Noted that the next meeting of 
the Essex County Joint Waste Committee was due to take plan on 12 December 
2007.

(Nazeing Focus Day Review – (Item 3)).  - J Gilbert reported on discussions 
regarding the County Freight Strategy. It was noted that this strategy had now been 
completed and would be submitted to a future meeting of this Panel for 
consideration.  The County’s Traffic Study was also about to go out for consultation.  

ECC Speed Management Plan – Noted that at the last meeting, the Panel expressed 
a wish to submit views on the Plan when published for consultation and that this 
should be added to the work plan.  

Agenda Item 4

Page 3



Environmental and Planning Services Standing Scrutiny PanelThursday, 6 December 
2007

2

(Climate Change – The Nottingham Declaration (item 9) At its last meeting,  the 
Cabinet agreed that the Council should become a signatory to the Declaration. The 
documentation was awaiting finalisation. It was agreed that a draft of the action plan 
be submitted to the Panel for consideration.  

Action: Work Plan to be updated accordingly.  

45. CLEAN NEIGHBOURHOODS & ENVIRONMENT ACT (CNEA) /ROGERS REVIEW 
- REPORT OF SUB - GROUP  

The Panel received the report of the Sub – Group for endorsement and submission 
to the OSC.  

J Gilbert presented the report as follows.  

(a)  Rogers Review  

The report detailed a table of proposed enforcement priorities for the District based 
on the findings of the Review. (page 5).  

Agreed that the wording in the column entitled ‘proposed priority for Alcohol licensing 
(to include entertainment licensing)’ be altered to read ‘national priority for alcohol/ 
Local priority for entertainment’. 

The use of the word ‘priority’ in recommendation (2) (a b) created some uncertainty. 
The Panel  sought clarification of the resource implications of this proposal.   

To clarify these issues, it was agreed that the following amendments be made to the 
recommendation: 

(a) That the most important enforcement functions for the Council in 
relation to the Rogers Review be agreed as set out in paragraph 6 and that in the 
context of street scene services Crime and Disorder matters also be included as a
most important function;

(b) that the enforcement priorities falling outside of these areas /or outside the 
Rogers Review terms of Reference be further reviewed.   

(b)  Cleaner Neighbourhoods Legislation:  

The Sub Group considered the powers provided by the Clean Neighbourhoods and 
Environment Act 2005  (CNEA).  

The Group also considered the Encams Local Environmental Quality Report. The 
Panel noted the findings regarding Epping Forest and requested that this report be 
sent to all Members of the Panel.  

Action: J Gilbert to circulate copy of the Encams review of Epping Forest to 
members of the Panel.  

The Panel also Agreed that recommendation 2 (c) be amended to read that the 
finding of the review be noted.

The Panel felt that this document should be considered as part of the further review 
of the outstanding issues. A lot of the findings related to the quality of the Highway 

Page 4



Environmental and Planning Services Standing Scrutiny PanelThursday, 6 December 
2007

3

Infrastructure. It was suggested that these be put to the Area Highways Manager 
when he next attends a meeting of this Panel.

(c) Information

The Panel considered ways of enabling the public to report issues. The Panel 
supported the provision of a ‘One Stop Shop’ service to facilitate such reporting.  

(d) Enforcement Processes  

Reference was made to the corporate enforcement policy (tabled). There was a need 
to update this document. The Panel agreed that this task be undertaken as part of 
the further review.

(e) Partnerships  

The Panel noted the need to consider the resource implication of negotiations.  J 
Gilbert also reported on his intention to meet with Essex Police to consider 
arrangements for co-ordinating the delivery of the new powers.  

The Panel sought clarification of the timetable for the introduction of the measures.  

(f)  Fixed Penalty Notices.  

The Panel asked about the arrangements for allocating FPN income generated by 
the Police. Agreed J Gilbert to find this out and report back to the Panel.  

Agreed that the report as amended be submitted to the 31 January OSC and 4 
February 2008 Cabinet for endorsement.  

46. REPORTS TO BE MADE TO THE NEXT MEETING OF THE OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  

Report on Rogers Review/CNEA.

47. FUTURE MEETINGS  

28 February 2008.

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l a
nd

 P
la

nn
in

g 
Se

rv
ic

es
 S

ta
nd

in
g 

Pa
ne

l 

Ite
m

 
R

ep
or

t D
ea

dl
in

e 
/ 

Pr
io

rit
y 

Pr
og

re
ss

 / 
C

om
m

en
ts

 
Pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
of

 
Fu

tu
re

 M
ee

tin
gs

 
(1

) E
ss

ex
 C

ou
nt

y 
Jo

in
t W

as
te

 
P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t P

ro
ce

ss
 

 

To
 re

ce
iv

e 
th

e 
m

in
ut

es
 

fro
m

 th
e 

la
st

 m
ee

tin
g/

s.
 

(2
) N

ew
 L

oc
al

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t S
ch

em
e 

an
d 

E
as

t o
f E

ng
la

nd
 P

la
n 

– 
E

FD
C

 
R

es
po

ns
e 

to
 F

in
al

 V
er

si
on

 
S

ee
 c

om
m

en
ts

 
S

til
l a

w
ai

tin
g 

th
e 

fin
al

 v
er

si
on

 o
f t

he
 E

as
t o

f E
ng

la
nd

 
pl

an
 –

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
in

 th
e 

ne
w

 y
ea

r. 

(3
) 

R
e 

us
e 

of
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 in
 th

e 
G

re
en

 
B

el
t/T

ra
ffi

c 
Is

su
es

 in
 th

e 
R

oy
do

n 
an

d 
N

az
ei

ng
 A

re
as

. 
O

ng
oi

ng
 

U
nd

er
w

ay
 –

 P
ol

ic
e 

an
d 

V
O

S
A

 to
 a

tte
nd

 m
ee

tin
g 

on
 

28
 F

eb
 2

00
8 

 

(4
) C

le
an

 N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
s 

an
d 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
t A

ct
 2

00
5 

 –
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 p
ro

vi
si

on
s 

  

 
C

om
pl

et
ed

: R
ep

or
t s

ub
m

itt
ed

 to
 3

1 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
O

S
C

. 
R

eq
ue

st
 s

ub
m

itt
ed

 fo
r f

ur
th

er
 w

or
k 

to
 b

e 
ca

rr
ie

d 
ou

t 
on

 is
su

es
 a

ris
in

g 
fro

m
 th

e 
R

og
er

s 
R

ev
ie

w
 (S

ee
 It

em
 

12
)  

 

(5
) O

ng
oi

ng
 T

ra
ve

lle
r I

ss
ue

s 
 

W
or

k 
tra

ns
fe

rr
ed

 to
 th

e 
H

ou
si

ng
 S

ta
nd

in
g 

P
an

el
. 

C
om

pl
et

ed
: P

ay
ne

s 
La

ne
 R

ep
or

t a
nd

 A
ct

io
ns

 n
ow

 
co

m
pl

et
ed

.  

(6
) P

la
nn

in
g 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 –
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

of
 e

nf
or

ce
m

en
t f

ig
ur

es
/o

ut
co

m
es

 
 

C
om

pl
et

ed
 

(7
) A

nt
i S

oc
ia

l B
eh

av
io

ur
 in

 C
ar

 P
ar

ks
 

H
ig

h 
N

ew
 It

em
 a

dd
ed

 to
 th

e 
w

or
k 

pl
an

 b
y 

th
e 

O
S

C
 o

n 
4 

O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

7.
 

28
 F

eb
ru

ar
y,

 2
00

8 
23

 A
pr

il 
20

08
  

Agenda Item 6

Page 7



(8
) P

ar
ki

ng
 o

n 
G

ra
ss

 V
er

ge
s/

 P
ar

ki
ng

 
in

 R
es

id
en

tia
l A

re
a 

 
 To

 m
on

ito
r t

he
 re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 o

f t
he

 
20

05
/0

6 
Ta

sk
 a

nd
 F

in
is

h 
P

an
el

 o
n 

P
ar

ki
ng

 in
 R

es
id

en
tia

l A
re

as
 a

nd
 

id
en

tif
y 

an
y 

fo
llo

w
 a

ct
io

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

 
W

es
t A

re
a 

H
ig

hw
ay

s 
M

an
ag

er
 a

tte
nd

ed
 m

ee
tin

g 
on

 
29

 O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

7.
 

  

 

(9
) C

lim
at

e 
C

ha
ng

e 
– 

A
pr

il 
20

07
 

C
ou

nc
il 

m
ot

io
n 

 
A

w
ai

tin
g 

C
ab

in
et

’s
 

ad
op

tio
n 

Fu
rth

er
 re

po
rts

 to
 b

e 
su

bm
itt

ed
 to

 fu
tu

re
 P

an
el

 
m

ee
tin

gs
.  

 A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n 
to

 b
e 

su
bm

itt
ed

 to
 P

an
el

  

(1
0)

 E
C

C
 S

pe
ed

 M
an

ag
em

en
t P

la
n 

 
 

 
 

(1
1)

 E
ss

ex
 F

re
ig

ht
 S

tra
te

gy
  

 
 

 

(1
2)

 L
oc

al
 B

et
te

r R
eg

ul
at

io
n 

O
ffi

ce
 –

 
D

ra
ft 

S
tra

te
gy

 2
00

8 
- 2

01
1 

 
 

 

 

 

Page 8



Report to Environmental & Planning Services Standing 
Panel 
 
Date of meeting: 28 February 2008 
  
Subject:  Local Better Regulation Office – Draft Strategy 2008-11 
 
Officer contact for further information:  Jim Nolan (Ext 4083) 
 
Committee Secretary:  Z Folley 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
(1) To note the receipt of the Local Better Regulation Office consultation paper; 
 
(2) To respond to the consultation as set out in paragraph 9 of the report; and 
 
(3) To consider how to proceed with a review of the Council’s existing enforcement 
policies and processes 
 
Background 
 
1. The Local Better Regulation Office (LBRO) has been established by the Government 
to drive the wider regulatory reform agenda at a local level and to stimulate, support and 
incentivise improvement.  The LBRO is tasked with securing more effective performance of 
regulatory services in accordance with the principles of better enforcement. 
 
2. The LBRO recognises the key role played by local authority regulatory services, in for 
example ensuring the food we eat is safe, the air we breathe is clean and our workplaces 
safe.  The LBRO wishes to ensure that in making business comply with legislative 
requirements, this is done in a consistent and intelligent way, avoiding unnecessary burdens 
and contributing to sustainable economic growth. 
 
3. The LBRO feels that regulatory services are often undervalued by too many 
authorities and not understood by the local community.  The difficulty of achieving the 
balance between protection and “red tape” is all too difficult to achieve.  The LBRO sees a 
mixed situation, with a lot of good practice, but with still an undercurrent of business 
bemoaning inconsistent enforcement alongside residents and consumers wishing to see high 
levels of protection provided. 
 
4. The regulatory landscape is very complex, with regulation taking place at local, 
regional and national levels.  Some is entrusted to authorities and some is ‘contracted out’ to 
agencies.  Government, through the financial assessment of the Regulatory Enforcement and 
Sanctions Bill (RESB) has identified possible savings of up to £80 million per year through 
“better regulation”.  The LBRO, through its strategy, seeks to realise those savings whilst 
maintaining the balance already referred to.  The Panel will already be aware of Government 
intervention in this complex area through its recent consideration of the Rogers Review and 
the setting of national and local enforcement priorities. 
 
The draft strategy 
 
5. The draft strategy is attached to this agenda as appendix xx.    The LBRO wishes to 
help local authorities change their approach to enforcement to achieve positive outcomes.  It 
sees regulatory activities as needing to be: 
 
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 9



• proportionate 
• accountable 
• consistent 
• transparent 
• targeted 
 
6. What does the LBRO mean by the five items set out in paragraph 5 above?   
 
Proportionality: balancing the intended enforcement action against the risk, with more 

stringent action in the more serious cases etc 
Accountability: conducting enforcement activity in a way residents and businesses 

wish it to be done, providing a means whereby residents and 
businesses can engage 

Consistency: applying regulation fairly within and without the district, so that, for 
example, national companies receive consistent treatment across 
authority boundaries 

Transparency: business know what is expected of them and what the authorities 
approach is to regulation, thereby providing higher levels of certainty 
for local business 

Targeted: targeting regulation where it is most needed, and in accordance with 
risk, treating compliant businesses with a lighter touch than non 
compliant businesses. 

 
7. As currently drafted, the RESB gives six key functions to the LBRO: 
 
(i) to operate the primary authority scheme; 
(ii) provide advice to central government on local regulatory issues; 
(iii) issue statutory guidance to regulatory authorities; 
(iv) review and revise the (Rogers Review) national and local priorities; 
(v) map the regulatory landscape to better understand how it all works; and 
(vi) work with national regulators and representative and professional bodies to create 

benchmarks for a “world class” regulatory system. 
 
8. To achieve this the LBRO will focus its activities around three strategic objectives: 
 
(1) support for service improvement and change; 
(2) the delivery of consistency; and 
(3) improved services generally 
 
Members are directed to page 12 of the consultation document where these principles are 
set out in diagrammatic form. 
 
The consultation 
 
9. The Local Better Regulation Office (LBRO) have asked stakeholders to comment on 
their draft strategy and in particular to address their thoughts to three questions, namely: 
 
(1) do you share our understanding of the problems facing local regulation and local 
authority regulatory services? 
 
(2) will the three objectives we intend to focus on effectively deliver LBRO’s mission to 
secure the effective performance of local authority regulatory services in accordance with the 
better regulation principles? and 

 
(3) are the activities outlined under the core objectives sufficient to achieve that mission 
and contribute towards improving economic prosperity and community wellbeing? 
 
Officers have taken the view that it would be unhelpful to try to deal with these questions in 
isolation from one another, so, in the paragraphs which follow, a response is suggested in the 

Page 10



wider context of the document as a whole: 
 
• in broad terms we support the need for consistent and proportionate approach to 
enforcement which is risk based.  We also see the benefit in a range of sanctions which 
reflect the intention of the offender and the severity of the breach but which also meet public 
expectations and discourage repeat offending.  It is however worth stating that we too often  
find ourselves facing the situation where we feel that there is little support from the Courts in 
terms of the nature of the offences committed compared to the penalties or sanctions 
available.  We therefore feel that this is an area which LBRO could help by encouraging 
liaison between the Courts and Regulatory Authorities 
 
• we welcome the recognition of the problems encountered by local government when 
interpreting legislation on the ground. We also welcome the results of the Rogers Review, 
although greater is needed as to how much focus should be placed on the Review priorities 
(at the expenses of other services) in an environment of increasing resource constraints 
 
• we recognise that inter authority working is a real way forward in delivering services both 
in terms of economy of scale and consistency of approach 
 
• we look to the LBRO to facilitate closer relationships between the various ‘layers’ of 
Regulatory mechanisms as something which could effectively underpin the new Local Area 
Agreement regime 
 
• we partially accept the criticism often cited by the private sector concerning inconsistency 
of approach and are pleased to see that there is an appreciation of the need for local 
variation in some circumstances.  We would however, like to see guidance in some areas 
which would enable us to achieve consistency.  The guidance offered under section 182 of 
the Licensing Act 2003 is considered to be a good example. 
 
• in terms of resource related inconsistency, we feel that this may unavoidable in a risk 
based culture.  Problems vary from one Local Authority to another and the risk based 
approach results in resources being allocated to those areas where they are needed 
irrespective of what is happening in neighbouring authorities.  Having said this, we would 
strongly welcome a holistic and comparable performance assessment mechanism.  We 
strongly feel that any form of assessment should be rigorously consulted upon and 
extensively trialled before introduction, thus avoiding the pitfalls of an inadequate assessment 
such as BV166, which is widely perceived by professional officers to be divisive and 
ineffective 
 
• by its very nature, especially in a diverse County such as Essex, local inconsistencies in 
approach will inevitably arise.  Whilst it is possible for centrally issued guidance to seek to 
reduce these inconsistencies, we feel that guidance should be guidance and must recognise 
and allow the flexibility for local circumstances to be taken into account 
 
• we welcome the objective of supporting service improvement and change particularly the 
provision of guidance.  We look forward to the proposals for a world class performance 
assessment network and the adoption of sensible and effective “Macrory” sanctions 
 
• we cautiously welcome the aim to deliver consistency through the primary authority 
mechanism.  Whilst seeing some advantages of such a system, and indeed having 
participated in the home authority regime ourselves, a number of possible problems present 
themselves.  The issue of primacy of one local authority over another has yet to be resolved.  
It is vital that the overriding principle of local democracy is upheld.  The question of resources 
is key to the success of this approach, smaller authorities may not have the resources to 
commit to this scheme without some form of ring fenced central allocation of funds 
 
• we are pleased to see that you intend to improve the regulatory services system.  We feel 
that reform is long over due and that in close consultation with Local Authorities and 
professional bodies such as the CIEH, the TSA and LACORS, real improvements can be 

Page 11



made especially in the areas of benchmarking and value added stakeholder involvement 
 
Current Epping Forest DC position 
 
10. The Council can justifiably look forward to some of these proposed changes because 
of the manner in which it generally manages its regulatory roles.  The Council is a signatory 
to the Cabinet Office “Enforcement Concordat” and has adopted its own Enforcement Policy.  
These both make reference to key matters such as proportionality, consistency and 
transparency.  The former Environmental Services also had its own enforcement policy, 
adopting similar principles, and as a whole the Council has generally seen enforcement as a 
last resort rather than something to be automatically pursued.  The Council achieves a score 
of 100% against Best value Performance Indicator 166, which measures a basket of 
performance issues relating to environmental health activities, but includes specific reference 
to enforcement policies, public engagement and the like. 
 
11. In the recent reports to this Panel on the Rogers Review members were informed of 
the need to review the Council’s enforcement policies, in order to build in the Rogers Review 
priorities, but also to take account of the changing circumstances which arise out of the 
“Safer, cleaner, greener” initiative.  In so doing the Panel also recognised the need to 
encompass regulatory services other than those included in the Rogers Review, such as, 
inter alia, Building Control and Planning Enforcement .  The Panel may wish to consider how 
best to take this process forward. 
 
 

Page 12


	Agenda
	4 Notes of the last meeting
	6 Work Programme
	7 Local Better Regulation Office - Draft Stratgey 2008-2011

